

Nomination submitted by Federal Preservation Officer:

The State Historic Preservation Officer reviewed the following nomination and responded to the Federal Preservation Officer within 45 days of receipt of the nomination and supports listing the property in the National Register of Historic Places.

MONTANA

Broadwater County

McMaster Ranch Historic District, 6043 US 12/287 East, East Helena vicinity, SG100007169

Authority: Section 60.13 of 36 CFR part 60.

Dated: October 19, 2021.

Sherry A. Frear,

*Chief, National Register of Historic Places/
National Historic Landmarks Program.*

[FR Doc. 2021-23521 Filed 10-28-21; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4312-52-P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Ocean Energy Management

[Docket No. BOEM-2020-0018]

Draft Environmental Impact Statement on the Cook Inlet Lease Sale 258

AGENCY: Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Interior.

ACTION: Notice of availability of a draft environmental impact statement.

SUMMARY: The Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM) announces the availability of the draft environmental impact statement (DEIS) for the proposed Cook Inlet Outer Continental Shelf (OCS) oil and gas Lease Sale 258 (Lease Sale 258). This notice marks the start of the public review and comment period and announces three virtual public hearings on the DEIS. After the public hearings and written comments on the DEIS have been reviewed and considered, a final EIS will be prepared. The DEIS and associated information, including the exploration, development and production, and decommissioning scenario (E&D Scenario) are available for review on the agency's website at <https://www.boem.gov/ak258>.

DATES: Comments are due by December 13, 2021.

BOEM will host three virtual public hearings on the DEIS as follows:

- November 16, 2021; 6:30 p.m.–8:30 p.m. (Alaska daylight time (AKDT))
- November 17, 2021; 2:00 p.m.–4:00 p.m. (AKDT)
- November 18; 6:30 p.m.–8:30 p.m. (AKDT)

Information regarding these hearings can be found at <https://www.boem.gov/ak258>.

ADDRESSES: You may submit your comments through the Federal eRulemaking Portal at <http://www.regulations.gov>. In the search box, enter “BOEM-2020-0018” and then click “Search.” Select the document on which you want to comment and follow the instructions to submit comments and to view supporting and related materials available for this notice.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Tyler Moore, Section Chief, BOEM, Alaska Regional Office, 3801 Centerpoint Drive, Suite 500, Anchorage, Alaska 99503-5823, or at telephone number (907) 334-5200.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

On January 17, 2017, the Secretary of the Interior approved the “Proposed Final 2017–2022 Outer Continental Shelf Oil and Gas Leasing Program” (National OCS Program). The National OCS Program includes proposed Lease Sale 258.

Cook Inlet stretches from the Gulf of Alaska to Anchorage in southcentral Alaska. The proposed action evaluated in the DEIS would offer for lease all available OCS blocks in the northern portion of the Cook Inlet OCS Planning Area. The proposed lease sale area comprises 224 OCS blocks, which covers an area of approximately 1.09 million acres.

On September 10, 2020, BOEM published in the **Federal Register** the notice of intent (NOI) to prepare an EIS in support of Lease Sale 258. Publication of the NOI opened a public scoping period that extended through October 13, 2020. In September 2020, BOEM held a series of public scoping meetings. The comments received during the public scoping period were used to inform the scope and content of the DEIS.

BOEM published the notice of availability of the DEIS in the **Federal Register** on January 15, 2021, initiating a 45-day comment period on the DEIS. On February 1, 2021, Executive Order 14008 directed the Secretary of the Interior to pause new oil and gas leasing on public lands and offshore waters, to the extent allowed by applicable law, pending completion of a comprehensive review of Federal oil and gas activities, including a review of climate and other impacts. After issuance of the Executive order, BOEM canceled the comment period and virtual public hearings for the Lease Sale 258 DEIS on February 4, 2021. Since then, BOEM updated its assessment of undiscovered oil and gas resources of the Nation's OCS (<https://www.boem.gov/2021-assessment-undiscovered-oil-and-gas-resources-nations-outer>) and is reviewing

additional information made available since the January 2021 publication of the DEIS.

Proposed action: The proposed action addressed in the DEIS is to conduct an oil and gas lease sale on all available blocks in the northern portion of the Cook Inlet OCS Planning Area (Proposed Action). Proposed Lease Sale 258 would provide qualified bidders with the opportunity to bid on OCS lease blocks in Cook Inlet to gain conditional rights to explore for, develop, and produce oil and natural gas.

The DEIS analyzes the potential environmental impacts of the proposed lease sale on the physical, biological, and human environments in the Cook Inlet area. See 40 CFR 1508.8¹ (2019 ed.). The DEIS describes a hypothetical scenario of exploration, development, production, and decommissioning activities that could result from the proposed lease sale and analyzes the potential impacts of those activities on the environment. The DEIS also analyzes reasonable alternatives to the Proposed Action. In addition to the Proposed Action and the no action alternative, BOEM analyzed three alternatives consistent with internal agency scoping, past public input received related to the current and prior National OCS Programs and previous lease sales, and comments received during the scoping period following the NOI that was published in September 2020. The three alternatives address potential impacts to the Cook Inlet distinct population segment (DPS) of beluga whale, the southwest Alaska DPS of northern sea otter, and the Cook Inlet drift gillnet fishery.

The Proposed Action defers certain areas from leasing due to potential conflicts with resources of high ecological and subsistence value. These deferred areas include: (1) The majority of the designated critical habitat for beluga whale and northern sea otter and all critical habitat for Stellar seas lions and the North Pacific right whale located within the Cook Inlet OCS Planning Area; (2) a buffer between the area considered for leasing and the Katmai National Park and Preserve, the Kodiak National Wildlife Refuge, and the Alaska Maritime National Wildlife Refuge; and (3) many of the subsistence

¹ Revisions to the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) regulations implementing NEPA (40 CFR parts 1500–1508) became effective on September 14, 2020 and apply to any NEPA process commenced after that date. See 40 CFR 1506.13. Because the NEPA process for this action began prior to September 14, 2020, the DEIS was prepared in conformance with the NEPA regulations in effect immediately prior to September 14, 2020.

use areas for the Native Villages of Nanwalek, Seldovia, and Port Graham identified during the Cook Inlet Lease Sale 191 process.

In this DEIS, BOEM has examined the potential environmental effects of activities that could result from the Proposed Action, along with several alternatives. The DEIS is based on BOEM's estimate of production potential from the recently national assessment of potential oil and gas resources in the proposed lease sale area and an associated scenario that estimates a range of potential oil and gas activities, including exploration, seismic surveying, on-lease ancillary activities, exploration and delineation drilling, development, production, and decommissioning.

Comment Submission: The public and all interested parties, including Federal, State, Tribal, and local governments or agencies, are invited to submit written comments on the DEIS and associated information, including the E&D scenario, through the Federal eRulemaking Portal: <http://www.regulations.gov>. In the search box, enter "BOEM-2020-0018" and then click "Search." Select the document on which you want to comment and follow the instructions to submit comments and view supporting and related materials available for this notice.

BOEM does not accept anonymous comments. Your name and contact information are required to submit comments on the Federal eRulemaking Portal. Before including your address, phone number, email address, or other personally identifying information in your comment, you should be aware that your entire comment, including your personally identifying information, may be made publicly available at any time. While you can ask BOEM in your comment to withhold your personally identifying information from public review, BOEM cannot guarantee that it will be able to do so.

If you request BOEM to withhold from disclosure your personally identifiable information, you must identify any information contained in your comments that, if released, would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of your privacy. You also must briefly describe any possible harmful consequences of the disclosure of information, such as embarrassment, injury, or other harm. All submissions from organizations or businesses and from individuals identifying themselves as representatives or officials of organizations or businesses will be made available for public inspection in their entirety.

Public Hearings: BOEM will host virtual public hearings on the DEIS in October 2021. Information regarding these hearings can be found at <https://www.boem.gov/ak258>. The purpose of these hearings is to receive public comments on the Draft EIS. These hearings are scheduled as follows:

- November 16, 2021; 6:30 p.m.–8:30 p.m. (Alaska daylight time (AKDT))
- November 17, 2021; 2:00 p.m.–4:00 p.m. (AKDT)
- November 18, 2021; 6:30 p.m.–8:30 p.m. (AKDT)

Authority: 42 U.S.C. 4231 *et seq.*; 43 CFR 46.415 (2019 ed.).

Amanda B. Lefton,

Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management.

[FR Doc. 2021-23505 Filed 10-28-21; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4310-MR-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1261]

Certain LED Landscape Lighting Devices and Components Thereof; Commission Determination Not to Review an Initial Determination Terminating the Investigation as to Shenzhen Wanjia Lighting Co., Ltd. d/b/a Wonka Based on a Consent Order; Issuance of a Consent Order; Request for Written Submissions on Remedy, the Public Interest, and Bonding With Respect to the Defaulted Respondents

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has determined not to review an initial determination ("ID") (Order No. 23) of the presiding administrative law judge ("ALJ") granting a joint, unopposed motion to terminate Shenzhen Wanjia Lighting Co., Ltd. d/b/a WONKA of Shenzhen, China ("WONKA") based on a consent order. WONKA is terminated from the investigation. The Commission has issued a consent order to WONKA. The Commission requests written submissions from the parties, interested government agencies, and other interested persons on the issues of remedy, the public interest, and bonding, under the schedule set forth below.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Ronald A. Traud, Esq., Office of the General Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW,

Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 205-3427. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at <https://www.usitc.gov>. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on April 13, 2021, based on a complaint, as supplemented, filed on behalf of Wangs Alliance Corporation, d/b/a WAC Lighting ("WAC"). 86 FR 19282 (Apr. 13, 2021). The complaint alleged a violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain LED landscape lighting devices and components thereof by reason of infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 10,571,101 and 10,920,971. *Id.* The complaint further alleged that an industry in the United States exists as required by section 337. *Id.* The Commission named seven respondents: WONKA; cBright Lighting, Inc. of San Leandro, California ("cBright"); Dauer Manufacturing Corp. of Medley, Florida ("Dauer"); FUSA Corp. of Medley, Florida ("FUSA"); CAST Lighting LLC of Hawthorne, New Jersey ("CAST"); Lumien Enterprise, Inc. d/b/a Lumien Lighting of Acworth, Georgia ("Lumien"); and Jiangsu Sur Lighting Co., Ltd. of Jiangsu Province, China (with Lumien, the "Lumien Respondents"). *Id.* The Office of Unfair Import Investigations is not named as a party in this investigation. *Id.*

This investigation has been terminated as to the Lumien Respondents and CAST; and cBright, Dauer, and FUSA have been found to be in default. Order No. 13 (July 9, 2021), *unreviewed by Notice* (July 29, 2021); Order No. 14 (Aug. 4, 2021), *unreviewed by Notice* (Aug. 18, 2021); Order No. 20 (Sept. 10, 2021), *unreviewed by Notice* (Oct. 6, 2021); Order No. 22 (Sept. 24, 2021), *unreviewed by Notice* (Oct. 14, 2021).

On September 21, 2021, WAC and WONKA filed a joint, unopposed motion to terminate this investigation with respect to WONKA based on a